
 
 

 
 

The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 
Email: mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: January 24, 2023 

RE:  February 1st, 6:00pm Sargent Family Community Center 
 

**PICDA Meeting at 5:45PM** 
Call to Order 
 

Roll Call 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Proclamation: American Red Cross Month  
 

Public Hearings 
1. Approval for a Special Permit for Music, Dancing, and Entertainment for Presque Isle 

Country Club, with location of 35 Parkhurst Siding Road (Single Hearing): Staff 
recommends approval. 

2. Approval of a Malt, Spirituous and Vinous Liquor License for Mainely Mexican LLC 
d/b/a Mainely Mexican, with a location of 6 State Road (Single Hearing): Staff 
recommends approval. 

3. Approval to Amend Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance:  When the 
City Clerk was reviewing fees, many were outdated, especially the fees for public 
hearings.  The public hearing fees are meant to recoup the cost of placing the ad in the 
newspaper.  Other fees are outdated and should be reconsidered: jukeboxes, pinball and 
billiard rooms.  After discussion, staff recommends approval.   

4. Approval of Amended Chapter 48 General Assistance Ordinance: State updated the 
ordinance, staff recommends approval. 

Citizen Comments 
 
Consent Agenda: Can be approved as presented or individually. Staff recommends approval 

5. Approve Minutes from January 4, 2023 
6. Approve 2022 Warrants #49, #50, #51, #52 and 2023 Warrant #1   
7. Approve Deeds: One deed is modifying a deed restriction for 1 Edgemont Dr. (current 

setbacks are 30’ not 50’) and the other is 109 Parsons St. RAM Construction (F.W. 
Webb). 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Old Business 
8. Hearing on Dangerous Buildings:  There are three separate buildings for counsel to 

consider: 1 Mechanic St., 23 St. John St. and 257 Houlton Rd.  The narrative for each 
property, state statutes, and pictures are included. 

 
New Business 

9. Maine State Firefighters Convention: Aaron Buzza, PIFD, will be present to share the 
exciting news of Presque Isle being selected for the site of the 59th State Fire Convention 
for 2023.  Memo from Chief White is included to give an overview and to request 
funding for challenge coins. 

10. Northern Border Regional Grant:  A notice was placed in the Star Herald asking for 
Presque Isle based entities to submit proposals to the council for consideration.  Council 
can issue one letter of support.  No outside entities sent an application by the deadline of 
January 24th.  Scott Wardwell will present a proposal for Council consideration for a 
terminal project.  PIUD is interested in submitting an application too.    

11. Schedule Public Hearing to Amend Chapter 16 Land Use and Code Development 
Ordinance: Galen Weibley will present Planning Board recommendations for 
modifications to the document.  Staff recommends scheduling a hearing.   

12. Schedule Public Hearing to Amend Presque Isle Development Fund By-Laws: The 
PIDF has changes to the bylaws that will streamline the approval process and clarify 
programs. Galen Weibley will present the changes.  Staff recommends scheduling a 
hearing.     

13. Transfer Funds to Downtown Revitalization Committee Reserve: The PIDRC is 
requesting that unspent 2022 funds be set aside for replacement of holiday decorations 
for Main Street.  This has been done in prior years.  Staff recommends approval of 
transfer.   

14. 2022 Departmental Review:  Related to goal Setting, I wanted to give a brief overview 
of some department’s activities and review data from 2022.  For Discussion 

15. Goal Setting:  Memo of 2022 goals for review with 2023 projects lists are included.  
Council will be asked for dates for possible workshop.  

16. Approve 2022 Budget Actuals: The city had a great year overall, revenues exceeded 
expectations and expenses collectively were $423,000 under budget.  Some individual 
budget line items were overspent and require approval.  Memo from the Finance 
Department details performance.  Staff recommends approval.  

 
Manager’s Report 
 

Announcements 
 

Executive Session 
Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(E) for a Consultation with Legal Counsel 
 

Adjournment 
 
 



 
 

 
 

             Presque Isle City Council Meeting 
                     
               Wednesday, February 1, 2023 
                                  6:00 PM 
           Sargent Family Community Center 
 
                **PICDA Meeting at 5:45PM** 

    
                   AGENDA 

 
                         Call to Order 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Proclamation 

 
American Red Cross Month  

 
Public Hearing 

 
1. Approval for a Special Permit for Music, Dancing, and Entertainment for Presque Isle 

Country Club, with location of 35 Parkhurst Siding Road (Single Hearing) 
2. Approval of a Malt, Spirituous and Vinous Liquor License for Mainely Mexican LLC 

d/b/a Mainely Mexican, with a location of 6 State Road (Single Hearing) 
3. Approval to Amend Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance 
4. Approval of Amended Chapter 48 General Assistance Ordinance 

Citizen Comments 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

5. Approve Minutes from January 4, 2023 
6. Approve 2022 Warrants #49, #50, #51, #52 and 2023 Warrant #1 totaling 2,006,169.29 
7. Approve Deeds 

 
Old Business 

 
8.  Hearing on Dangerous Buildings 

 
New Business 

 
9. Maine State Firefighters Convention  
10. Northern Border Regional Grant 
11. Schedule Public Hearing to Amend Chapter 16 Land Use and Code Development 

Ordinance 
12. Schedule Public Hearing to Amend Presque Isle Development Fund By-Laws 
13. Transfer Funds to Downtown Revitalization Committee Reserve 
14. 2022 Departmental Review 
15. Goal Setting 
16. Approve 2022 Budget Actuals 



 
 

 
 

 
 

       Manager’s Report 
 

    Announcements 
 

Executive Session 
 

    Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(E) for Consultation with Legal Counsel 
 

Adjournment 



 

 
 
 
 
 
American Red Cross Month, March 2023  
City of Presque Isle Proclamation  
  
  
In times of crisis, people in Maine come together to care for one another. This humanitarian spirit is 
part of the foundation of our community and is exemplified by American Red Cross volunteers and 
donors.   
  
In 1881, Clara Barton founded the American Red Cross, turning her steadfast dedication for helping 
others into a bold mission of preventing and alleviating people’s suffering. Today, more than 142 years 
later, we honor the kindness and generosity of Red Cross volunteers here in Maine, who continue to 
carry out Clara’s lifesaving legacy. They join the millions of people across the United States who 
volunteer, give blood, donate financially, or learn vital life-preserving skills through the Red Cross.   
  
In Maine, the contributions of local Red Cross volunteers give hope to the most vulnerable in their 
darkest hours — whether it’s providing emergency shelter, food and comfort for families devastated 
by local disasters like home fires, donating essential blood for accident and burn victims, heart surgery 
and organ transplant patients, and those receiving treatment for leukemia, cancer or sickle cell disease; 
supporting service members and veterans, along with their families and caregivers, through the unique 
challenges of military life; helping to save the lives of others with first aid, CPR and other skills; or 
delivering international humanitarian aid.  
  
Their work to prevent and alleviate human suffering is vital to strengthening our community’s 
resilience. We dedicate this month of March to all those who continue to advance the noble legacy of 
American Red Cross founder Clara Barton, who lived by her words, “You must never think of anything 
except the need, and how to meet it.” We ask others to join in this commitment to give back in our 
community.  
  
  
  
 

 
 
 
 
 



American Red Cross Month:  2023 Proclamation 
 

WHEREAS, March is American Red Cross Month, a special time to honor the kindness of our neighbors 
who aid families in need every day in Maine, across the United States and around the world. Their 
dedication touches millions of lives each year as they carry out the organization's 142-year mission of 
preventing and alleviating suffering in the face of emergencies; and 

WHEREAS, the American Red Cross aspires to turn compassion into action, and Mainers - American Red 
Cross volunteers - help each other when we are in need; and 

WHEREAS, Mainers in supporting the American Red Cross have helped our neighbors get back on their 
feet after devastating home fires, assist communities across the country face record-breaking 
hurricanes, floods and wildfires; and 

WHEREAS, thanks to the American Red Cross’s statewide community of volunteers and partners, 
people in Maine facing a disaster can meet their basic emergency needs, including having access to 
safe shelter, food, and critical health and mental health services, for free, day or night; and 

WHEREAS, because of the American Red Cross’s work, children and youth in Maine know how to 
prepare for and stay safe during a disaster, people have working smoke alarms and emergency escape 
plans and there are always trained individuals nearby ready to use their skills to save lives; and 

WHEREAS, due to the American Red Cross’s efforts and local communities hosting blood drives and 
donating life-saving blood, anyone can access blood and blood products, and we have a healthy and 
plentiful blood supply that helps to extend or save lives; and 

WHEREAS, military personnel, veterans, and their families, have access to global emergency 
communication services and the support they need to cope with deployments and reintegrating back 
into the community because of the American Red Cross; and 

WHEREAS, Red Cross Restoring Family Links help reconnect families separated by international crises 
such as armed conflict, international disasters and migration; and 

WHEREAS, this life saving work is vital to strengthening our community’s resilience, this month of 
March is dedicated to all of those who continue to advance the noble legacy of the American Red Cross 
and ask others to join in the commitment to care for people in need. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City of Presque Isle City Council, fully support and do hereby 
proclaim March 2023 as American Red Cross Month throughout the City, and we encourage all citizens 
of Presque Isle to join the Red Cross in its humanitarian mission as volunteers, blood donors, 
community partners, and local champions to continue to build the resiliency of our communities. 

______________________________    ______________________________  
Jacob Shaw, Councilor Chair     Kevin Freeman, Council Deputy Chair 
______________________________    ______________________________  
Mike Chasse, Councilor     Craig Green, Councilor 
______________________________    ______________________________  
Doug Cyr, Councilor      Jeffrey Willette, Councilor 
______________________________    ______________________________  
Garry Nelson, Councilor     Martin Puckett, City Manager 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 1 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Approval for a Special Permit for Music, 
Dancing, and Entertainment for Presque Isle Country Club, 
with location of 35 Parkhurst Siding Road (Single Hearing) 

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) Application 
2) Public Hearing Notice 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ to approve a Special Permit for 
Music, Dancing, and Entertainment for Presque Isle Country 
Club, with location of 35 Parkhurst Siding Road. 







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council 
will be hold a PUBLIC HEARING on February 1, 2023 at 
6:00 PM at the Sargent Family Community Center at 24 
Chapman St. to consider a Special Permit for Music, 
Dancing, and Entertainment for:

Presque Isle Country Club
With location of 35 Parkhurst Siding Road

 
�e public may attend the public hearing or submit written 
comments.  You can obtain more information by contacting 
the City Clerk’s O�ce at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque 
Isle, ME  04769 or call at 760-2702. 
  
ADA ASSISTANCE: Anyone needing special assistance at the 
public hearing due to a disability should contact the City of 
Presque Isle’s City Clerk at 760-2702 at least two (2) business 
days prior to the meeting date. 

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk 
Published Jan. 25, 2023 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 2 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Approval of a Malt, Spirituous and Vinous 
Liquor License for Mainely Mexican LLC d/b/a Mainely 
Mexican, with a location of 6 State Road (Single Hearing) 

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) Application 
2) Public Hearing Notice 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor_______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ to approve a Malt, Spirituous and 
Vinous Liquor License for Mainely Mexican LLC d/b/a 
Mainely Mexican, with a location of 6 State Road. 

























NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council 
will be hold a PUBLIC HEARING on February 1, 2023 at 
6:00 PM at the Sargent Family Community Center at 24 
Chapman St. to consider a Malt, Spirituous and Vinous 
Liquor License from:

Mainely Mexican LLC d/b/a Mainely Mexican
With location of 6 State Road

 

�e public may attend the public hearing or submit written 
comments.  You can obtain more information by contacting 
the City Clerk’s O�ce at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque 
Isle, ME  04769 or call at 760-2702. 
  

ADA ASSISTANCE:  Anyone needing special assistance at the 
public hearing due to a disability should contact the City of 
Presque Isle’s City Clerk at 760-2702 at least two (2) business 
days prior to the meeting date. 
 

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk
Published Jan. 25, 2023 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 3 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: Approve amended Chapter 9 License 
and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance  

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) Memorandum 
2) Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance 
3) Public Hearing Notice 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ to adopt the changes made to 
Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                        Presque Isle, ME 04769              207-760-2703.                    Fax 207-764-2501           
 

Presque Isle City Clerk  
Kimberly A. Finnemore 

Email:  Kfinnemore@presqueisleme.us 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

CC: Martin Puckett, City Manager;  
Patty Jandreau, Executive Assistant  
Galen Weibley, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

DATE: January 25, 2023 

RE:  Approval of Amended Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance  

  
          Chapter 9 Licensee and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance, has not been Amended since February 1, 2016.  
          We have Updated the Fees that we no longer use ex: Hawkers and Peddlers, and added Ones that we have  
           Now ex: Marijuana Fees.  
 
 

Mr. Chairman, I move that we approve the Amended Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees 
Ordinance. 
 
 
 
Motion made by:  ________________________________ Seconded by: ___________________________ 
 
                       
 
 
 

   



CHAPTER 9 
 

CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE 
 
 

License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance 
 
 

 

Adopted: December 15, 1997 
Repassed: March 19, 2001 
Amended: July 2, 2001 
Amended: February 2, 2004 
Repassed: February 23, 2005 
Amended: August 4, 2008 
Repassed: February 2, 2009 
Repassed: January 7, 2013 
Amended:  October 5, 2015 
Amended:  February 1, 2016 
Repassed: January 6, 2021 
Amended: February 1, 2023 

 
 
Attest:     

Kimberly A. Finnemore, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City Seal 

Deleted: Thomas C. King



Chapter 9 – License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance 
Page 1 

 

 
 

CHAPTER 9 
 

LICENSE AND PUBLIC HEARING FEES ORDINANCE 
 
 

Section 1 Purpose 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish the license and public hearing for the City 
of Presque Isle. 

 
Section 2 Fees 
The fees for licenses and public hearings shall be as follows: 

 

 

Autobody graveyard or junkyard 

 

$50.00 plus public hearing fee 
more than 100 feet from highway  

Automobile graveyard or junkyard 
less than 100 feet from highway 

$250.00 plus public hearing fee 

Automobile recycling (5-year permit) $250.00 

Bowling alleys $75.00 now 

  

Employment agency $100.00 

  

Repealed  c 

Repealed x 

  

  

Pawnbroker (Chapter 23) $$100.00 

Public Hearing fees $115.00 now/ 120.00 

Refuse collection (Chapter 42) $100.00 per vehicle  
   

Special amusement for dancing and 
entertainment (Chapter 41A) 

$40.00 Plus Public Hearing Fee 

Deleted: Auction

Deleted: $5.00 after first day

Deleted: 5 year

Deleted: 25.00

Deleted: Circus or carnival

Deleted: $25.00

Deleted: Going Out of Business/Closing Out Sale

Deleted: $25.00

Deleted: Hawkers and Peddlers

Deleted: Based on percentage of sale

Deleted: Juke Box – per machine

Deleted: $15.00

Deleted: Pin Ball Machines – per location

Deleted: $25.00

Deleted: Pool and billiard rooms

Deleted: $20.00

Deleted: 25.00

Deleted: 40.00

Deleted: 50.00

Deleted: Roller skating rink

Deleted: $25.00



Chapter 9 – License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
Special permit for catering off premises $10.00 

Shooting galleries $10.00 

Taxicab drivers (Chapter 12) $25.00 

Taxicab service (Chapter 12) $100.00 per vehicle  
 
Liquor License                                                      $20.00 plus the Public Hearing Fee 
 
BYOB License                                                        $20.00  
 
Marijuana Store: Annual Operation License Fee                                   $2,500.00 
Marijuana Manufacturing Facility: Annual Operation License Fee   $2,500.00 
Marijuana Testing Facility: Annual Operation License Fee:                $1,000.00 
Adult Use Marijuana Cultivation: 
              Tier 1: 0 to 500 SF of plant canopy: Annual Permit/Licensing Fee:   $500.00 
              Tier 2: 500-2,000 SF of mature plant canopy: Annual License Fee:     $3,000.00 
              Tier 3: 2,001-7,000 SF of mature plant canopy: Annual License Fee:  $10,000.00 
              Tier 4:> than 7,000 SF of mature plant canopy: Annual License Fee: $30,000.00 
Medical Marijuana Cultivation: Annual Operation License Fee:                      $5,000.00 
Adult Use Marijuana Nursery Cultivation: Annual License Fee:                      $350.00 
 
Lodging Establishment Licenses                                                     $100.00 Plus Public Hearing 
Fee 
 
 
Section 3 Sunset Provision 
This Ordinance shall be in force for the term of four (4) years from its effective date. 
This Ordinance shall become null and void upon the expiration of four (4) years from 
said effective date, unless recommended and required by the City Council to remain 
effective prior to such expiration date. 

Deleted: 10.00

Deleted: 40.00



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council 
will be hold a PUBLIC HEARING on February 1, 2023 at 
6:00 PM at the Sargent Family Community Center at 24 
Chapman St. to consider approval to Amend:

Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees Ordinance
 
�e public may attend the public hearing or submit written 
comments.  You can obtain more information by contacting 
the City Clerk’s O�ce at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque 
Isle, ME  04769 or call at 760-2702. 
  
ADA ASSISTANCE:  Anyone needing special assistance at the 
public hearing due to a disability should contact the City of 
Presque Isle’s City Clerk at 760-2702 at least two (2) business 
days prior to the meeting date. 
 

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk 

Published Jan. 25, 2023 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 4 
 

SUBJECT 
 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Approval to Amend Chapter 48 General 
Assistance Ordinance Appendix A-G 

  
INFORMATION 

 
1) Memorandum 
2) 2022/2023 MMA General Assistance Ordinance 

Updates 
3) Ordinance Adoption Form 
4) Public Hearing Notice 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ to approve the amendments to 
Chapter 48 General Assistance Ordinance Appendix A – G.  



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                        Presque Isle, ME 04769              207-760-2703.                    Fax 207-764-2501           
 

Presque Isle City Clerk  
Kimberly A. Finnemore 

Email:  Kfinnemore@presqueisleme.us 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

CC: Martin Puckett, City Manager;  
Patty Jandreau, Executive Assistant  
Galen Weibley, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

DATE: January 24, 2023 

RE:  Approval of Amended Chapter 48 General Assistance Ordinance  

  
 

The State Amended the Chapter 48 General Assistance Ordinance. Please note that updates have been made to 
the General Assistance Ordinance, Appendix A 
(overall maximums), Appendix B (food maximums), Appendix C (housing maximums), Appendix  
D (electricity maximums) and Appendix G (mileage rate). There is also a new Recovery Residence  
Housing Maximums guide. We anticipate an updated the Maine Municipal Association (MMA)  
GA Ordinance will be released soon. You can find information about the MMA Model Ordinance  
on the Maine Welfare Director’s Association (MWDA) website at  
www.mainewelfaredirectors.org. 
 
Mr. Chairman, I move that we approve the Amended Chapter 48 General Assistance Ordinance. 
 
 
 
Motion made by:  ________________________________ Seconded by: ___________________________ 
 
                       
 
 
 

   



[For use when adopting a new version of the GA ordinance or amending the body of the 
ordinance – not solely adoption of updated appendices] 

Rev. 8-2021 

MUNICIPALITY OF __________ 

GENERAL ASSISTANCE ORDINANCE  

Pursuant to 22 M.R.S. § 4305(1), the municipal officers of the Municipality of 

__________________________, after notice and hearing, hereby enact the attached General 

Assistance Ordinance with appendices in its entirety. This Ordinance shall supercede and 

replace all previous Ordinance versions. A copy of this Ordinance will be filed with the Maine 

Department of Health & Human Services (DHHS) pursuant to 22 M.R.S. § 4305(4), and shall be 

available for public inspection at the municipal office along with a copy of 22 M.R.S. chapter 

1161.  

Signed this _______ day of ________________, 20___, by the municipal officers: 

  

__________________________            ______________________________ 

(Print Name)                                                                   (Signature) 

__________________________            ______________________________ 

(Print Name)                                                                   (Signature) 

__________________________            ______________________________ 

(Print Name)                                                                   (Signature) 

__________________________            ______________________________ 

(Print Name)                                                                    (Signature) 

_________________________              ______________________________ 

(Print Name)                                                                    (Signature) 

 

[Send a copy of the enactment page and ordinance to DHHS, 109 Capitol Street, SHS 11, Augusta, ME 04330-0011] 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE LEGAL NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Presque Isle City Council 
will be hold a PUBLIC HEARING on February 1, 2023 at 
6:00 PM at the Sargent Family Community Center at 24 
Chapman St. to consider approval to Amended:

Chapter 48 General Assistance Ordinance
 
�e public may attend the public hearing or submit written 
comments.  You can obtain more information by contacting 
the City Clerk’s O�ce at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque 
Isle, ME  04769 or call at 760-2702. 
  
ADA ASSISTANCE:  Anyone needing special assistance at the 
public hearing due to a disability should contact the City of 
Presque Isle’s City Clerk at 760-2702 at least two (2) business 
days prior to the meeting date. 
 

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore

City Clerk 

Published Jan. 25, 2023 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 5 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2023 Minutes 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1) January 4, 2023 Minutes  

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor ____________ to approve minutes from January 4, 
2023. 



Presque Isle City Council Meeting 
 

January 4, 2023 
5:30 PM 

Sargant Family Community Center 
 
 

Call to Order – Roll Call 
 
Present: Chairman K. Freeman, Deputy Chairman J. Shaw, Councilors C. Green, D. Cyr, 
M. Chasse, G. Nelson and J. Willette. 
City Manager Martin Puckett and City Clerk Kimberly Finnemore were also present. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Chairman K. Freeman called the meeting to order at 5:36 PM and led those present in  
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

1. City Clerk Kimberly Finnemore Administered Oath of Office to newly elected 
City councilors. Douglas Cyr and Jeffrey Willette.  

 
 

2. Council appointments. 
Chairman 
Councilor M. Chasse nominated Councilor Jacob Shaw to be Chairman for the 2023 
year, seconded by Councilor J. Willette.  
Councilor C. Green nominated Chairman K. Freeman to be Chairman for the 2023 
year, seconded by Councilor G. Nelson. 
City Clerk K. Finnemore handed out paper ballots for council to vote.  
                                                                           Votes 3 for K. Freeman and 4 for J. Shaw.  
 
Deputy Chairman 
Councilor D. Cyr nominated Councilor K. Freeman for Deputy Chairman for the 
2023 year, seconded by Councilor J. Willette  
                                                                                                                                Vote: 7-0 
 
Aroostook Waste Solutions-Deputy Chairman K. Freeman 
 
Audit Committee (2)-Deputy Chairman K. Freeman and Chairman J. Shaw 
 
Finance Committee (2) (Available to sign weekly warrants)- Councilor C. Green and 
Deputy Chairman K. Freeman. 
 



Page 2 of 9 

Presque Isle Development Fund Board of Trustees (2)- Deputy Chairman K. 
Freeman and Councilor J. Willette 
 
Presque Isle Downtown Revitalization Committee (May Appoint up to 2) – 
Chairman J. Shaw and Councilor M. Chasse. 
 
Presque Isle Downtown TIF Advisory Committee (2)- Chairman J. Shaw and 
Councilor C. Green  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Deputy Chairman K. Freeman seconded by Councilor G. 
Nelson to accept the slate of Nominees with exception of Councilor C. Green to take 
Councilor M. Chasse’s place on the Presque Isle Downtown Revitalization 
Committee.  
                                                                                                                                  Vote 7-0 
 
3. 2023 APPOINTMENTS Council appoints volunteers/staff 1 year term 
 
CITY ATTORNEY:   
Richard Currier per Article 4.10 of the City Charter.  
 
CITY CLERK:  
Kimberley Finnemore per Article 4.10 of the City Charter. 
 
CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 
TIM ST. PETER as the Code Enforcement Officer, Building Inspector, Housing 
Inspector, Electrical Inspector Local Heath Inspector, and Plumbing Inspector. 
 
AIRPORT ADVISORY BOARD -4-year appointment 
Granville Lamb Jr.- 12/31/26 
Earl Twiggs -12/31/26 
 
AROOSTOOK WASTE SOLUTIONS - 1 year   
Dana Fowler - 12/31/23 
Martin Puckett – alternate -12/31/23 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE -4 year 
One member needed 
 
BOARD OF ASSESSMENT REVIEW -3 year 
Gregory Roderick 12/31/25 
 
LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES -3 year 



Page 3 of 9 

Allison Ladner, Martha LaPointe, Lois Brewer, Nicole Cote, 12/31/25 Alternates Ed 
Escobar and Sharon Brown 12/31/23 
 
PLANNING BOARD -4 year 
Stacy Walton 12/31/26 
 
PRESQUE ISLE DEVELOPMENT FUND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 3 year 
Floyd Rockholt 12/31/25 
 
PRESQUE ISLE DOWNTOWN REVITILIZATION COMMITTEE 4 year 
No vacancies 
 
PRESQUE ISLE DOWNTOWN TIF ADVISORY COMMITTEE 1 year 
Sean Nordenhold and Floyd Rockholt-12/31/2023 
 
RECREATION & PARKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 3 year 
Renee Fournier -12/31/25 
 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 3 years 
Earl Twiggs -12/31/25 
 
AD HOC- AIRPORT TERMINAL  
Core Committee 
Scott Wardwell, Airport Director 
Marty Kelly, Operations Director 
Kellie Heu, United- Station Manager 
Larry Clark, Airport Advisory Board 
Extended Committee Members 
City Council Member 
Car Rental Representative-Shelly Proulx 
TSA Representative 
United Airlines- Corporate Real Estate Representative 
Central Aroostook Chamber of Commerce- LaNiece Sirois 
Presque Isle Air Museum Representative 
 
Ex-Officio Appointments to Boards and Committees 
Airport Advisory Board-Three Ex-Officio Seats- One Year Term-City Manger M. 
Puckett, Tom Powers and Scott Wardwell-12/31/2023 
Library Board of Trustees-Two Ex-Officio Seats- One-year Term- Sonja Eyler and 
Bradley Turner-12/31/23  
Presque Isle Development Fun Board of Trustees-Three Ex-Officio Seats-One Year 
Term- Tom powers, Martin Puckett and Galen Weibley-12/31/23 



Page 4 of 9 

Presque Isle Downtown TIF Advisory Committee-Three Ex-Officio Seats-One Year 
Term-Martin Puckett, Brad Turner and Galen Weibley-12/31/223 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor M. Chasse, seconded by Chairman K. Freeman to 
approve the appointments and reappointments as presented in attached sheet for 
the City Charter, Board & Committee, and Ex-Officio appointments. Amend the 
Zoning Board of Appeals Earl Twiggs to 12/31/2025 instead of the typed 12/25/31. 
            
                                                                                                                                       Vote 6-0  
                                                                                                   Councilor J. Willette absent 
4. Set City Council meeting times and places for 2023 
 
Please find the following schedule for the 2023 regularly scheduled City Council 
meetings, which are based on past practices. The practice has been to meet the first 
Wednesday, once a month at 6:00 PM. If the Wednesday is a holiday, then the 
meeting would be postponed until the following Wednesday. 
 
 
DATE DAY TIME 
February 1, 2023 Wednesday 6:00 PM 
March 1, 2023 Wednesday  6:00 PM 
April 5, 2023 Wednesday 6:00 PM 
May 3, 2023 Wednesday 6:00 PM 
June 7, 2023 Wednesday 6:00 PM 
July 5, 2023  Wednesday 6:00 PM 
August 2, 2023  Wednesday 6:00 PM 
September 6, 2023                              Wednesday 6:00 PM 
October 11, 2023 Wednesday 6:00 PM 
November 1, 2023 Wednesday 6:00 PM 
December 6, 2023 Wednesday 6:00 PM 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Chairman K. Freeman, seconded by Councilor M. Chasse that 
the regular City Council meetings be held on the first Wednesday of each month at 
6:00 PM either in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, 
Maine or the multi-purpose room at the Sargent Family Community Center. 
 
In instances when the first Wednesday is a recognized holiday, or in cases of severe 
weather when offices are closed, the regular meeting shall be held on the following 
Wednesday of the month at 6:00 PM. At regular meeting, the City Council shall 
decide if it wants to call a special meeting at a date and time determined by the City 
Council. 
                                                                                                                             Vote: 6-0 
                                                                                              Councilor J. Willette Absent 



Page 5 of 9 

 
 
                                                                    Recess 
 
Deputy Chairman K. Freeman called for a recess of the City Council Meeting at 5:50 
PM in order to hold the Presque Isle Industrial Council Annual Membership 
Meeting. Seconded by Councilor D. Cyr.  
                                                                                                                              Vote: 7-0                                                                          
 
The meeting was called back to order at 6:02 PM                                                          

 
                                                                 Public Hearing 

 
5. Request to re-pass Ordinances due to “Sunset Provision” 
Chapter 53 Disbursement Warrant 
Chapter 54 All-Terrain Vehicle 
Chapter 60 Property Assessed 
 

     Chairman J. Shaw opened the public hearing at 6:04 PM; 
    
City Manager M. Puckett spoke on the changes to Chapter 54. Deleted ATV operators 
shall not exceed the posted 10 MPH speed limit when traveling the section of ATV trail 
that runs parallel to Parsons Street from Harris Street to the Connector Road 
intersection.  
 
There were no Citizens Comments  

 
Chairman J. Shaw closed the Public Hearing at 6:06 PM 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green seconded by Deputy Chairman K. Freeman 
to repass ordinances listed, with the changes to Chapter 54.  

                                                                                                                                     Vote: 7-0 
 
6. Approval to Adopt Chapter 63 Lodging Establishment License Ordinance 

 
Chairman J. Shaw opened the public hearing at 6:07 PM 
 
City Manager M. Puckett spoke on Chapter 63 Lodging Establishment License 
Ordinance: Presented draft at December 7th Council meeting. Galen Weibley will 
discuss the past three month’s work on the language with the Planning Board and 
stakeholders. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Galen Weibley spoke on the changes in the language. and the Timeline for applications. 



Page 6 of 9 

There were no Citizens Comments 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor J. Willette, seconded by Councilor D. Cyr to adopt 
Chapter 63 Lodging Establishment License Ordinance. 
                                                                                                                                       Vote: 7-0                                          
 

                                                                Citizen Comments 
 
There were no citizens Comments 
                                                                  Consent Agenda 
 

7. Approve Minutes from December 7, and December 12, 2022 meetings. 
 
8. Approve 2022 Warrants #45-48 totaling $1,649,142.11 
 
9.  Approve Reappointments of Carol MacPherson, Greg Roderick and Noel Currier to 
Presque Isle Utilities District Board of Trustees-12/31/2026 

 
10.  Approve Policy on Treasurer’s Disbursement Warrants for Employee Wage and 
Benefits. 
 
11. Approve Municipal Officers’ Policy on Disbursement of Municipal Education Cost. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green, seconded by Deputy Chairman K. Freeman 
to approve Consent Agenda #7-#11 as presented. 
                                                                                                                                          Vote: 7-0                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                        Old Business                                                                                                                                  
 
No Old Business was discussed 
 
                                                                  New Business 
 
12. Schedule Public Hearing to Amend Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees 
 
City Manager M. Puckett spoke about the Chapter 9 and said it hasn’t been updated 
since 2016.  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Deputy Chairman K. Freeman, seconded by Councilor M. Chasse 
to schedule a Public Hearing for February 1, 2023 to consider adopting changes to 
Chapter 9 License and Public Hearing Fees. 
 
                                                                                                                                        Vote: 7-0 



Page 7 of 9 

 
13. Schedule Public Hearing to Approve Amended Chapter 48 General Assistance 
Ordinance. 
 
City Manager M. Puckett spoke on the changes to Chapter 48 General Assistance 
Ordinance that the state updated the Maximums.  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor J. Willette, seconded by Councilor M. Chasse to 
Schedule a Public Hearing for February 1, 2023 to consider adopting changes to Chapter 
48 General Assistance Ordinance.  
                                                                                                                                      Vote: 7-0 
 
14. Tax Acquired Properties. 
 
On Friday, December 16, 2022 at the close of business the automatic foreclosure took 
place on properties with 2020 unpaid taxes. A listing of the new tax acquired properties 
is now provided to the City Council. After receipt of this listing, the City Council has 21 
days to determine if any of the tax acquired properties are to be retained for municipal 
use or if they are to be disposed of in accordance with Section 5 (Disposition of Tax 
Acquired Property) of the City’s Policy for Tax Acquired Properties. Under the 
provisions of this Policy, the City Council may direct the Treasurer to offer the property 
for resale back to the prior owner(s) if they make arrangements to pay all past taxes 
due, accrued interest, costs associated with the lien and foreclosure process, and a $150 
administrative fee. Because we cannot make any arrangements either to prepare the 
property for sale or for accepting payments until this decision is made. My 
recommendation is as follows: 
Property #1 – Retain by City 
Property #2 thru #4 – List for sale with Realtor 
Property #5 – Set up payment arrangement 
 

1. 1967-RE Gogan, Walter 73 Chapman Rd. .44-acre lot w/garage structure 
Assessed value $15,000 
Liened Amount $14,116.37 
Liened Amount (2021) $547.09 
2022 taxes billed $418.00 
Comments-2020 tax bill includes supplemental billing for dangerous building 
removal and lot cleanup by PI Code Enforcement. 
 

2. 128-RE Gogan, Walter 74 Exchange St. .10-acre lot 
      Assessed value $14,000 
      Liened Amount $261.58 
      Liened Amount (2021) $3,386.19 
      2022 taxes billed $332.50 



Page 8 of 9 

      Comments-2021 tax bill includes supplemental billing for dangerous building                     
removal and lot cleanup by PI Code Enforcement  

 
3. 700-RE Martin, Fernand 10 Delmont St. .18-acre lot  
     Assessed value $15,700 
     Liened Amount $4,501.16 
     Liened Amount (2021) $490.59 
     2022 taxes billed $372.88 
     Comments-2020 tax bill includes supplemental billing for dangerous building   
removal by PI Code Enforcement. 
4. 471-RE Martin, Fernand 25 Turner St. .24-acre lot  
     Assessed value $17,800 
    Liened Amount $1,268.49 
    Liened Amount (2021) $4,256.47 
    2022 taxes billed $422.75 
    Comments-2021 tax bill includes supplemental billing for dangerous building 
removal by PI Code Enforcement. 
5. 388-RE Theriault, Gerald 51 State ST. .27-acre lot with building 
      Assessed value $64,400 
      Liened Amount $261.23 
      Liened Amount (2021) $1,715.55 
      2022 taxes billed $1,541.40 
     Comments-Small balance due on 2020 tax year, tried contacting next of kin to 
payoff. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green and seconded by Councilor J. Willette that 
the City Council authorize property #1 to be retained by the City, list property #2 thru 
#4 for sale with a Realtor and authorize the City Treasurer to arrange a payment plan 
for Property #5 per the Policy for Tax Acquired Properties: 
 
#1-73 Chapman Road 
#2-74 Exchange Street 
#3-10 Delmont Street 
#4-25 Turner Street 
#5-51 State Street 
          
                                                                                                                                     Vote: 7-0 
 
                                                          Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager M. Puckett spoke on the Public Skate at the Forum. Fun activities at Rec 
will be Rugby Club, Ski Club, at the Library has family activities.  
The Volunteer Fire Dept is going to hold the State Maine Muster in Presque Isle. 



Page 9 of 9 

 
 

                                                   Announcements 
 

United Way of Aroostook will hold a Black-Tie Gala on January 21, 2023 at 5:30 at the 
Sargent Family Community Center. 
We have the following vacancies for Boards/Committees; Zoning Board and Planning 
Board. Please see the City Clerk for an application or apply online. 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Presque Isle City Council will be on 
Wednesday, February 1, 2023, 6:00 PM at the Sargent Family Community Center 
 

                                                     Adjournment 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor J. Willette seconded by Deputy Chairman K. Freeman 
to enter into Executive Session at 6:30 PM pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to discuss 
Negotiations. 
                                                                                                                                        Vote: 7-0 

 
Out of executive session at 6:56 PM. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor M. Chasse, seconded by Councilor J. Willette to 
authorize the City Manager to negotiate with MDOT for the acquisition of 1.03 acres of 
land. 
                                                                                                                                       Vote: 6-0 
                                                                                Deputy Chairman K. Freeman Abstained 
                                                                                                                                      
BE IT RESOLVED by Deputy Chairman K. Freeman seconded by Councilor J. Willette 
to enter into Executive Session at 7:01 PM pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. § 405(6)(D) to discuss 
Negotiations. 
                                                                                                                                        Vote:7-0 
Out of executive session at 7:20 PM 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor C. Green seconded by Councilor J. Willette to 
authorize the City Manager to finalize contract with Charter Communications. 
                                                                                                                                      Vote: 7-0 
 
                                                                                                                                         
BE IT RESOLVED to adjourn by Chairman J. Shaw, second by Deputy Chairman K. 
Freeman at 7:22 PM.  
                                                                                                                                        Vote 7-0 
 
Attested by:  ________________________________ 
     Kimberly A Finnemore, City Clerk 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 

 

SUBJECT 
 

 

 
 
     CONSENT AGENDA: 2022 Warrants #49, #50, #51, #52     
     and 2023 Warrant #1 totaling $2,006,169.29          
 
 

 

INFORMATION 
 

 
1) Warrant #49 $    148,000.40 
2) Warrant #50 $    397,347.29 
3) Warrant #51 $    151,030.33 
4) Warrant #52  $    168,621.13 
5) Warrant #1 $ 1,141,170.14 
 

  

 
 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 

     BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________ seconded by  
     Councilor _______________ to approve 2022 Warrants #49,  
     #50, #51, #52 and 2023 Warrant #1 totaling $2,006,169.29. 
 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 7 
 

SUBJECT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  Approve Quitclaim Deeds 
  

INFORMATION 
 
1) Memorandum 
2) Site Map 
3) Quitclaim Deed – Aroostook County Action Program 
4) Quitclaim Deed – RAM Construction, LLC 

  
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ to authorize the City Manager to 
sign the Quitclaim Deed to Aroostook County Action 
Program and the Quitclaim Deed to RAM Construction, LLC. 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street            Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459            Phone: 207.760.2780               Fax 207.764.2501  
 

The City of Presque Isle is an equal opportunity provider. To file a complaint, write to  
HR Director, 12 Second Street Presque Isle, ME 04769, or call (207) 760-2700. 

The Office of 
City Manager 

Martin Puckett 
Email:  mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 

 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: January 6, 2023 

RE:   Two Deeds 
 
1st Deed: Back in April of 2022, ACAP purchased 1 Edgemont Drive and two deed restriction 
were removed by the City Council.  The only restriction left remaining after the release was a 
setback requirement – “No buildings or structures, of any kind, shall be placed upon said parcel 
within fifty (50) feet of Edgemont Drive.” 
 
In some recent work, ACAP became aware that the existing building (which has existed since 
1991) is mere inches shy of meeting the 50 foot setback restriction set forth in the deed. The 
building is well within the municipal ordinance setback requirements (30 feet). I have attached 
a survey plan showing that the building is 49.4 feet from the current sideline of Edgemont 
Drive. 
 
This background is all lead up to ACAP’s request of the City—to release the only remaining deed 
restriction and make it so that ACAP’s property is subject to the same setback requirements as 
every other property and ensure that there is no potential claim for an extremely de minimus (6 
inch) violation of an old deed restriction. Attached is form of release very similar to the prior 
version which would release the final deed restriction. 
 
2nd Deed: RAM Construction LLC, 109 Parsons Street.  Council approved the purchase and sale 
agreement back in 2021 and FW Webb is now ready to proceed with the closing.   
 
Recommended Motion: Approve the quitclaim deed for RAM Construction LLC and ACAP and 
authorize the City Manager to sign associated paperwork.    





{EP - 04427233 - v1 } 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL QUITCLAIM DEED 
 

 The CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE, a body corporate and politic with a place of business in 
Presque Isle, Maine, for consideration paid, releases to AROOSTOOK COUNTY ACTION 
PROGRAM, a Maine non-profit corporation with a place of business in Presque Isle, Maine, with 
a mailing address of P.O. Box 1116, Presque Isle, ME 04769, all of its right, title and interest in 
and to the following described restriction on property in Presque Isle, Aroostook County, 
Maine, as reserved by the City of Presque Isle in the deed from the City of Presque Isle to 
AMHC Facilities, Inc., dated October 7, 1991 and recorded in the Aroostook County (Southern) 
Registry of Deeds in Book 2409, Page 54: 
 

“No buildings or structures, of any kind, shall be placed upon said parcel within 
fifty (50) feet of Edgemont Drive.” 

 
 The purpose of this deed is to extinguish the above-stated restriction on the premises 
known as 1 Edgemont Drive in Presque Isle, Aroostook County, Maine, being more particularly 
described in the deed from Facilities Incorporated (f/k/a AMHC Facilities, Inc.) to Aroostook 
County Action Program, dated April 14, 2022 and recorded in said Registry in Book 6310, Page 
17, such that said restriction is of no further force or effect. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Presque Isle has caused this instrument to be signed 
and sealed in its name by Martin L. Pluckett, City Manager, duly authorized, this ______ day of 
December, 2022. 
 
 
       CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE 
 
 
 
       By:_________________________________ 
       Martin L. Pluckett, City Manager 
       Duly Authorized 
 
  



{EP - 04427233 - v1 } 

 
 

STATE OF MAINE 
 

Aroostook County                 December _____, 2022 
 
 Personally appeared Martin L. Pluckett, City Manager of the City of Presque Isle, and 
acknowledged before me the foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed in his said capacity 
and the free act and deed of said City of Presque Isle. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public/Attorney at Law 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Print or Type Name as Signed 
 









PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 

SUBJECT 
 

OLD BUSINESS: Dangerous Buildings at 1 Mechanic Street, 23 
St. John Street, and 257 Houlton Road 

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) Memorandum (City Manager) 
2) State Statutes 
3) Memorandum (Code Enforcement) 
4) Narrative 
5) Pictures 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor ________           , seconded by 
Councilor ____             to adjudge 1 Mechanic Street, 23 St. 
John Street and 257 Houlton Road to be a nuisance and 
dangerous properties, for the owners to abate all conditions 
within 30 days to the satisfaction of the Code Enforcement 
Officer and assess each a penalty of $100.00 per day if not 
complied to.  Direct the City Manager to cause the 
structures to be demolished and removed.  The cost to be 
charged against the real estates that the structures set and 
shall constitute a lien on such real estates. 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459               207.760.2785                    Fax 207.764.2501          
This institution is an equal opportunity employer. 

The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 

Email:  mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: January 25, 2023 

RE:  Hearing – Dangerous Building 

On Wednesday evening, you will have a hearing for dangerous buildings.  This memo is intended to 
provide you the necessary background information to assist you.   
Essentially, you will be asked to listen to the evidence that will be presented to you to determine if the 
buildings being discussed meet the standard of being dangerous buildings, as defined within state law.   
 
Legislative Authority 
The Municipal Officers (City Council) have been given the authority to act as a quasi-judicial board to 
determine whether a building meets the standard of a dangerous building.  Further, should that 
determination be made, the Municipal Officers (MO) have the authority to order that the owner(s) correct 
or remove those items that cause the building to be dangerous.  Should the order not be complied with, 
the MO can cause action to occur to abate the danger, and later bill the owner of the property for the 
costs associated.   
Finally, should the bill not be paid, the community can then place a lien on the property that has the full 
enforcement weight of a tax lien.  The vast majority of this authorization can be found in 17 M.R.S.A. 
§ 2851, et seq.  A copy of that statute is included as a reference.   
 
Process 
The City Council will act as the hearing body.  The Council will need to determine several items.   
First, you will need to listen to the testimony before you, follow up with any questions you may have, 
and then determine if the testimony and facts presented have met your understanding of the dangerous 
buildings statutes.   
Next, if that is the case, the MO shall determine the correction action that is necessary and the time 
frame to meet that corrective action.   
Finally, the MO should empower City staff to insure that the corrective action occurs, should the owners 
of the property not follow the order of the MO.   
The Code enforcement officer will make recommendations for each property. 
Here is the basic outline of the hearing: 

1. Allow the city to present documentation and statements and allow council to ask questions 
2. Allow the property owner to present documentation and statements and allow council to ask 

questions 
3. Allow for either party to make final statements 
4. Close Hearing and make a motion(s).  







City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                     Presque Isle, ME 04769              207-760-2770                    Fax 207-764-2501           
 

From the desk of: 
Penny Anderson 

Email:  panderson@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

CC: Martin Puckett, City Manager;  
Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development  
Kim Finnemore, City Clerk 
Patty Jandreau, Executive Assistant 

DATE: January 5, 2023 

RE:  Recommendations on Dangerous Buildings   

  
Based upon the evidence presented and the testimony of the Code Enforcement Officer concerning the 
condition(s) of the premise(s) owned by Troy Ellis, located at 1 Mechanic Street, Kevin Saucier, located at 
23 St. John Street, and Chad Graham, located at 257 Houlton Road I hereby by move: 
 

· That the Council adjudge these properties to be a nuisance and dangerous to life or property; 
 

· That the Council make and record an Order stating that the owner(s) shall, within (30) days of 
service of this Order, abate all conditions creating a nuisance or dangerous condition to the 
satisfaction of the Code Enforcement Officer; 

 
· That should the owner fail to comply with the specified time, the owner shall be assessed a 

civil penalty of $100.00 per day and the City Council further directs the City Manager to cause 
the structure(s) to be demolished and removed.  The cost of such demolition and removal shall 
be charged against the real estate upon which the structure sets and shall constitute a lien on 
such real estate. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

RECOMMENDED:   Motion made by: _________________ Seconded by: ___________________________    



CONDEMNED PROPERTIES 
February 1, 2023  

 
1. 1 Mechanic Street – Owned by Troy Ellis.  Our office has been dealing with code violation at 

this location since 2013, due to the following:  Unsafe structure, partial roof collapse, the building has 
been vacant for several years and all utilities have been disconnected from the building.  Mr. Ellis 
started doing some minor repairs to the building this summer, but never completed them. 

 
 There currently is no mortgage on the property.  Taxes have been paid. 
 

The tax card has the value of the property at $29,000.00.   
 

2. 23 St. John Street – Owned by Kevin Saucier.  .  Our office has been dealing with code violation at 
this location since 2017, due to the following:  Structure not being secured and the building has been 
vacant for several years and all utilities have been disconnected from the building.  Mr. Saucier has 
contacted the office and stated that he was trying to sell the property. 
 
There currently is no mortgage on the property.  Taxes are due for 2022. 
 

3. 257 Houlton Road – Owned by Chad Graham.  Our office has been dealing with code violation at 
this location for a number of years, even before Mr. Graham purchased the property, due to the 
following:  Unsafe structure, foundation collapse, partial roof collapse, unsecure building,  the 
building has been vacant for several years and all utilities have been disconnected from the building.  
Mr. Graham has obtained a building permit last month and has started doing some minor repairs to 
the building.   

 
There currently is no mortgage on the property.  Taxes are due for 2021 and 2022.  

 















PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Maine State Firefighters Convention 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) Memorandum from Fire Chief, Darrell White 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
INFORMATION ONLY 



                       Presque Isle Fire Department                   

43 North St. Suite 1                Presque Isle, ME 04769               207.764.2538                    Fax 207.764.2537           
 

The Office of 
Fire Chief 

 Darrell K. White 
Email:  dwhite@presqueisleme.us 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

TO:  Honorable City Councilors 

FROM: Darrell White 

DATE: January 17, 2023 

RE:  Maine State Firefighters Convention 

 
Council, 
In September of 2023 the Presque Isle Fire Department will be hosting the Maine State Federation of 
Firefighters 59th annual State Convention right in here our Star City. The dates for this event begin on 
Sept. 8th with an evening meeting of the Maine State Federation of Firefighters (MSFFF) along with 
delegates for each member fire dept. Sept. 9th we begin the day with a parade down main street with 
fire department apparatus and marching units from all across Maine. After the parade comes the 
muster events where each fire department assembles a team to compete against each other in various 
events that are common in firefighting each event is timed the winners receive a trophy and bragging 
rights until the next event in 2024. As well all day there will be fire apparatus for viewing and 
equipment vendors as well as food vendors. These events will take place on the fairgrounds, 
consideration is being looked for some type of event at riverside as well. Later in the evening there 
will some type of entertainment which at this time are still in the works. The event finishes up 10th 
with a breakfast and award being given out to the muster winners in each event. 
Presque Isle held this same event in 2010 and it was very well attended by fire depts. From all across 
Maine. We also had a very large draw of local area residence who came out for the day to watch the 
parade and muster events we would except in the neighborhood of 300 firefighters to be in attendance. 
We would like for this year to develop a challenge coin that we can handout to each fire department 
who participates as well as have them for sale.  
We are asking if the Council would consider either approving the funding for these coins from the 
Cities overlay account or from the PIFD undesignated capital reserve account. Each coin would have 
our F.D. logo on one side and the City Seal on the other. We expect the price to be around 1,500.00 for 
300 coins. 
 
Respectfully, 
Chief Darrell White 

 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS:  Northern Border Reginal Grant 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) Memorandum  
2) Terminal Project Proposal 
3) Public Notice 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ that the City Council consider 
authorizing a letter of support for the Terminal Project 
Proposal. 
 
 
 



The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 
Email: mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: January 24, 2023 

RE:  Northern Border Regional Commission Letter of Support 
 

Established by Congress in 2008, the Northern Border Regional Commission (NBRC) is a 
partnership between the federal government and the States of Maine, New Hampshire, New 
York, and Vermont. The mission of the NBRC is to fund economic development and 
infrastructure projects throughout designated counties in its four-state service area. The NBRC 
partnership provides investments to job-creating projects that help reduce poverty, 
unemployment, and outmigration.  NBRC investment funds originate from the Federal 
Government but are approved by the Federal Government’s NBRC representative (Federal Co-
Chair) and the Governors of the four States. 

The NBRC can invest in economic and infrastructure projects in the following Maine counties: 
Androscoggin, Aroostook, Franklin, Hancock, Kennebec, Knox, Oxford, Penobscot, Piscataquis, 
Somerset, Waldo, and Washington. Depending on the level of economic and demographic 
distress in each county, NBRC funded projects can be eligible for up to an 80% matching grant. 

NBRC investments in Maine from 2010-2021: 68 awards totaling $22,762,848 
Matching funds for NBRC investments from 2010-2021: $90,917,614.67 

Previous Awards in Presque Isle: 

2019 NMCC: $59,800 energy reduction projects and simulator for hydraulics program 

2018 PIUD: $500,000 Sewer improvements to industrial park 

2016 PI Airport: $250,000 Five unit hanger 

Part of the submission process is a letter of support from the municipal officers.  In the past we 
have supplied multiple letters of support, but should select only one project.  Staff placed a 
notice in the Star Herald requesting applicants to submit proposals for Council to consider.  
Applications were due January 24th and no applications were submitted.   

Scott Wardwell will present an airport proposal for Council consideration to support.  PIUD also 
intends to apply for the NBRC grant.  If the PIUD project addresses waterflow issues on the 
industrial park, Council should consider the application prior to deciding.   

Applications are typically due in April, so Council can wait to make a decision at the March 
meeting.   

 



To:  City of Presque Isle, Maine City Council 
From:  Presque Isle International Airport 
Date:  January 25, 2023
RE:  New Terminal Project One-Page Summary 

PROJECT DEFINITION – New 22,000 sf airport
terminal facility, inclusive of check-in lobby, baggage 
handling, passenger screening checkpoint, secure 
hold rooms, concessions, and additional tenant 
functions. 

MAJORITY FUNDING OPPORTUNITY – Public Law 
117-58, Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) Airport
Terminal Program (ATP) or FY 2022 Competitive
Funding, Airport Improvement Program Supplemental 
Discretionary Grants

ROUGH ORDER OF MAGNITUDE PROBABLE 
COST– The rough order of magnitude probable cost 
for the overall program at this time, inclusive of design 
fees and construction costs is $28,953,700.

The following entities and programs that have been 
identified for varying levels of contribution to the 
project costs: 

• Federal Aviation Administration – both the BIL/ATP Grant and AIP Funding Program may cover up to as much
as 70% of the project costs 

• Maine Department of Transportation – the DOT may cover up to 2.5% of the project costs
• US EDA – the Public Works program may cover up to $4,000,000 in FY 23
• Norther Borders Regional Commission (NBRC) – up to $1,000,000 may be available from the NBRC
• Presque Isle International Airport Passenger Facility Charges (PFC) – the airport will contribute from the fees

collected from passengers who fly through PQI 
• City of Presque Isle, Maine – depending on State and Federal, range from $2,000,000 - $6,000,000

PRELIMINARY PROGRAMMED SCHEDULE 

Task Est. 
Completion 

BIL Grant Support 10/24/22 
FY 23 BIL/ATP Application Submittal 10/24/22 

FY 22 Supp. AIP Application Submittal 12/30/22 

FAA Decision Of FY 23 ATP Award  03/01/23

Preliminary Design 03/24/23 

Design Development 06/30/23 

Final Design 10/13/23 
FY 24 BIL/ATP Application Submittal 10/20/23 

100% Contract Drawings 11/17/23 
Project Design Complete 11/17/23 

Bid and Permitting 02/16/24 

Open Bids 02/09/24 

Start Construction 06/03/24 - - 

FAA ATP Exhibit 

swardwell
Underline



 

Public Notice for NBRC Economic & Infrastructure
Development Investment Program Grant  

Community Project Presentations
�e Presque Isle City Council is requesting community presentations from all interested parties 
located within Presque Isle who desire to submit a Northern Border Regional Commission 
Economic & Infrastructure Development Investment Program application for 2023 to attend 
their February 1, 2023 Council Meeting held at 6:00 PM at the Sargent Family Center (24 
Chapman Road, Presque Isle, ME).  �e Council will hear presentations from all submissions 
that will include a brief overview of their project and how the project will bene�t the residents of 
Presque Isle.  A�er presentations, the Council will issue only one project letter of support for a 
project proposal to be included with an entity’s application to the Northern Regional Border 
Commission.
Interested parties are required to submit their letter of interest and any additional information 
they would like to include regarding their proposed project to the DECD Director, Galen 
Weibley via mail (12 2nd Street Presque Isle, ME 04769) or email: decd@presqueisleme.us by 
noon on Tuesday, January 24, 2023 to be placed in the Council’s meeting packet. Late 
submissions will not be reviewed by the Council.  Public review of project submissions may be 
made available in person at City Hall (12 2nd Street, Presque Isle, ME) or at 
presqueislemaine.gov and public comment may be received before or during the Council 
meeting’s citizen comment section.  Any questions can be directed to the DECD Director at 
207-760-2727.  
�e public may attend the public hearing or submit written comments.  You can obtain more 
information by contacting the City Clerk’s O�ce at City Hall, 12 Second Street, Presque Isle, ME  
04769 or call at 760-2702. 
  

ADA ASSISTANCE:  Anyone needing special assistance at the public hearing due to a disability 
should contact the City of Presque Isle’s City Clerk at 760-2702 at least two (2) business days 
prior to the meeting date. 
 

Per City Council 
Kimberly A. Finnemore, City ClerkPublished Jan. 18, 2023



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 

 

SUBJECT 
 

 

 
     NEW BUSINESS: Schedule Public Hearing to Amend   
     Chapter 16 Land Use and Code Development        
     Ordinance 
 
 

 

INFORMATION 
 

  
1) Memorandum 

  
 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ to schedule a Public Hearing for 
March 1, 2023 to consider amending Chapter 16 Land Use 
and Code Development Ordinance. 

 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
The Office of 

Director of Economic & Community Development 
Galen Weibley 

Email:  gweibley@presqueisleme.us 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  City Councilors; Martin Puckett, City Manager, & Brad Turner Finance Director 

FROM: Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development 

DATE: January 24, 2023 

RE:  Request Public Hearing for changes to Chapter 16 Land Use Code 
 

The Planning Board is considering omnibus changes at their February 16, 2023 meeting that is a 
product of over 12 months of meetings and multiple public comment and hearing periods to continue 
making changes to the operations of site plan review and approvals which will allow Presque Isle to 
continue its reputation as being business friendly. 
 
Developers and businesses note site plan review and approvals as a way to improve city operations to 
streamline their tight construction schedule given weather challenges. In the past these approvals 
processes could take months since the Planning Board meetings only once a month and changes may 
go back and forth between the city review staff and developer. 

 
Revisions to the by-laws have been made as follows: 
 

· Reorders the various chapters of the Land Use Code to “Articles” 
· Permits Mobile homes in the URZ & AHZ and Special Exception in SRZ 
· Combines former Chapters 2 (standards) & 3 (Site Plan Review) into Article 2 
· Develops clear triggers of development that will be final approval by the Planning Board or 

internally with the PIDECD Staff 
· Establishes a clear process of Preliminary Approval by the PI Development Review Staff and final 

approval schedule for the Planning Board  
o This increases the communication between departments and outside agencies that are 

impacted by development 
· Establishes new standards for development to address, stormwater, solid waste and waste 

water management, light control, screening and buffering, land use standards,  
· Creates live links that aid developers in navigating the various cited sections and creates a table 

of contents that will automatically update as future changes are made to the document. 
· New amendment to comply with Maine’s Right to Food Constitutional Amendment that will 

allow Non-Commercial Keeping of Livestock in the AFFZ & AHZ but Special Exception in all other 
zones 

o This had much public discussion which can be read in the enclosed minutes 
 

Pending the Planning Board’s final input at their February meeting, staff is recommending scheduling a 
public hearing for your next council meeting to consider these changes.  
 
Suggested Motion: Mr. Chairman, I move that we schedule a public hearing to consider 
changes to the Chapter 16 of the Land Use Code at our March 1, 2023 Council meeting. 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

 

SUBJECT 
 

 

 
     NEW BUSINESS: Schedule Public Hearing to Amend the  
     Presque Isle Development Fund By-Laws 
 
 

 

INFORMATION 
 

  
1) Memorandum 

  
 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ to schedule a Public Hearing for 
March 1, 2023 to consider amending the Presque Isle 
Development Fund By-Laws 

 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
The Office of 

Director of Economic & Community Development 
Galen Weibley 

Email:  gweibley@presqueisleme.us 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  City Councilors; Martin Puckett, City Manager, & Brad Turner Finance Director 

FROM: Galen Weibley, Director of Economic & Community Development 

DATE: January 24, 2023 

RE:  Request Public Hearing of PIDF By-Law  
 

At the request during the January 20, 2023 PIDF Meeting, the PIDF members reviewed draft changes 
to the PIDF By-Laws in an effort to update the approval process to streamline approvals and to clarify 
changes to individual programs. 
 

 
Revisions to the by-laws have been made as follows: 
 

· Streamline approval process of loan requests lower than $15,000 to be approved by the PIDF 
Trustees instead of second approval by the entire council  

· Update the year terms for trustees 
· Clarifies what indirect relationship means for City employees, Councilors and Trustees 
· Provides the option for the City Council to recall the loan to be paid in full should 

business/developer not be current on their property taxes owed to the City 
· Allows for program funding and lending for housing development 
· Clarifies WARM Program is capped at $20,000 per unit instead of unclear amount cap 
· Clarifies Downtown Façade Loans require a public hearing by the City Council regardless of loan 

amount 
o This is because the City’s Downtown Redevelopment Program requires a public hearing 

by the City Council for the use of TIF revenues 
 

Staff is recommending scheduling a public hearing for your next council meeting to consider these 
changes. 
 
 
Suggested Motion: Mr. Chairman, I move that we schedule a public hearing to consider 
changes to the PIDF By-Laws at our March 1, 2023 Council meeting.  
 
Enclosures 
 
Ø PIDFP By-Laws with markup amendments 

 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS:  Transfer of Funds to Presque Isle Downtown 
Revitalization Committee Reserve 

 
INFORMATION 

 
1) Memorandum 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ to authorize the transfer of 
$4,713.44 from the Presque Isle Downtown Revitalization 
Committee’s operating funds to the Presque Isle Downtown 
Revitalization Committee’s special reserve account.  



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459               207.760.2717                    Fax 207.764.2501           
 

Finance Department 
From the desk of: 
Bradley Turner 

Email:  bturner@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Bradley Turner, Finance Director 

DATE: January 24, 2023 

RE:  Presque Isle Downtown Revitalization Committee (PIDRC) 

 
The Presque Isle Downtown Revitalization Committee is requesting to transfer the remaining balance 
of their operating funds to their PIDRC special reserve account for the future purchase of Christmas 
lights for the Downtown area. 
 
 Original Budget:   $24,513.00 
 YTD Expenses:    $19,799.56 
 Remaining Bal:     $4,713.44 
 
 
 
Staff recommends that $4,713.44 be transferred to the PIDRC special reserve account  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY COUNCILOR ________________ and seconded by Councilor 

________________ to approve the transfer of $4,713.44 from the PIDRC operating 

account to the PIDRC special reserve account.   

 
  



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 

SUBJECT 
 

 

 
NEW BUSINESS:  2022 Departmental Review 

 
 

 

INFORMATION 
 

  
1) Memorandum 
2) Police Department overview 
3) Fire Department overview 

  
 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 
 

DISCUSSION ONLY   



The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 
Email: mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: January 26, 2023 

RE:  2022 Review 
 

For the Annual Report, departments put together some statistics and an overview for the previous 
year. I wanted to include the full reports from the Fire Department and Police Department for 
calls for service and highlight some of the activities of 2022.  The financial overview is part of 
agenda item 16. Additional handouts will be presented at the meeting.  Other departments will 
have reports for the goal setting process.   

For discussion.   

Some highlights: 

Airport: Best October since 2000 (1,613) and most enplanements for December (1,512) “in this 
century!” -Scott Wardwell.  For 2022, there was a total of 15,409 enplanements, the highest 
amount in the past 10 years.  In 2019, there was a total of 13,149. 

Code:  Building Permits up 5.9% compared to prior year. Electrical & Plumbing permits down 
7.4% & 10% respectfully. Inspections were up (Total 44.8%) for all building activities compared 
to 2021.  

· Building (41.4%), Plumbing (41.4%), Electrical (32.9%), C of O (13.9%), Complaints 
(74%) 

Code broke new records: 135 Electrical Permits, 884 Building Inspections, addressed 409 
Compliant Inspections. 1,897 Total Inspections for the year. Previous Record: 2016 with 1,806 
total inspections. 

Finance: Expenditures $423,000 below budget, primarily due to staffing.  Revenues exceeded 
projections by $848,000, primarily from Maine State Revenue Sharing. 

 

 

 

 





















 
 

Presque Isle Fire Department 2022 Review 

2022 was one busy year for members of the Presque Isle Fire Department 

 

EMS Percentage increase per year,  

2018-2019 47%,  

2019-2020 36%  

2020-2021 11% 

2021 – 2022 9% 

This may be a good indication that we are beginning to find what our true yearly average may look like 
over the next few years for call volume as our percentage begins to hit single digit increases. 

The chart represents the total of fire calls each year which includes the following types of responses; 
structure fires, vehicle fires, grass brush fires, fire alarms, vehicle accidents, Carbon monoxide calls, LP 
gas leaks, and good intent calls. In short, any call that required PIFD to respond and investigate or act 
on. Fire runs for 2018 and 2019 are not available as we moved to a new reporting system in 2020 and 
prior years did not carry over in the new system. 

EMS calls cover E-911 calls, mutual aid calls, ALS intercepts, and Transfers both local and long distance.  

EMS is provided to Presque Isle, Chapman, Castle Hill, Mapleton, Easton, Washburn, Wade, and 
Westfield. Who are all under contract through 2025. 

 

1258

1843

2511
2794

3049

234 254 284

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Presque Isle Fire Department
5 year response numbers

EMS Call Fire Calls Power (EMS Call) Linear (Fire Calls)



 
 

Some of the major changes that have occurred the last two years is with call volume continuing to climb 
members are finding it hard to find time for other functions that we use to preform such as life safety 
inspections each month, currently those are done on a complaint driven bases. However, the hope is we 
can get back into a rhythm for doing these types of inspections under the new work schedule. 

In 2022 Firefighter Jordan Doody completed his Advance EMT training, and will graduate from the 
paramedic program in the spring of 2023.   

Firefighter Jonathan Stokely was hired Jon has his Advanced EMT license and will also graduate from the 
paramedic program in the spring of 2023. 

The two new ambulances ordered this year have still not arrived and we are being told the first one 
should be to us in March of 2023, they will not even give us an estimated date for the second unit. Covid 
19 pandemic has really impacted both the ambulance and fire apparatus builders, most state it will take 
manufactures into 2024 before things return to post covid. 

This year’s open house was a huge success as both police and fire along with other agency participated 
given both kids and adults information on how to keep themselves safe from fire, how to secure their 
homes, and much more. 

Some pictures from the open house. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Thank, goes out to Lowes who provided 300 wooden fire trucks for the kids to build during the 
open house, and as a note all 300 were built by the end of the open house. Lowes also presented us 
with 50 free smoke detectors to install in homes that have no working smoke detectors here in Presque 
Isle. This is a program we have run for years where up to two detectors can be installed by firefighters in 
qualifying homes. Priority is given to Seniors on fixed incomes, families with low income and children 
living in the home. After installation we offer to do a quick-fire safety check of the home. 
Recommendations are made but home owners are under no obligation to follow the recommendations 
made by fire personnel. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

I would also like to give a big thank you to Harbor Freight who gave us a 300-dollar gift card to purchase 
much needed maintenance tools.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In closing I would like to thank our City Manager, City Councilors, who have supported us throughout the 
years. As a team I believe we have created a Public Safety Division Police, Fire, EMS second to none.  

I would also like to thank all of the other department heads within the City who have given support and 
help whenever asked. It was  yes, a very busy year but a great year, one that staff at PIFD can be proud 
of I for one I’m so very proud of each of the employee’s here at PIFD they are professionals and 
dedicated first responders.  

 

Respectfully 

Darrell White, Fire Chief 

Presque Isle Fire Department 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM # 15 
 

 

SUBJECT 
 

 

 
NEW BUSINESS:  2023 Goal Settings 

 
 

 

INFORMATION 
 

  
1) Review 2023 Goals 

  
 

 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________  to schedule a Goal Setting 
Workshop(s) for  _________________________ . 



The Office of the City Manager 
Martin Puckett 
Email: mpuckett@presqueisleme.us 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable City Council 

FROM: Martin Puckett, City Manager 

DATE: January 24, 2023 

RE:  2023 Goals 
 
Each year Council and staff hold a meeting to review and select goals for the upcoming 
year.  Below is a list of 2022 goals that were selected.  Some 2022 goals are long term 
and will carry into future years. 
 
Some major projects that will be underway in 2023 are the MDOT PPI project 
(Downtown Transportation Study), Essential Air Service Bidding Process, Contract 
Negotiations for 5 Units, Echo Lake Sewer System Upgrade, Phase 1 of Aerospace Park 
& Terminal, and regional broadband expansion to list a few.   
 
Departments have many other ideas for consideration.  We look forward to a discussion 
and selecting dates and times for a workshop. 
 
2022 Goals 

1. Housing:  Team members: Tom Powers, Galen Weibley, Tim St. Peter, Lewis 
Cousins, Martin Puckett 
Goal:  Create various housing opportunities within the city to address existing 

shortages and future growth 
Action Items: 

· Identify locations/available land for development- all types of housing 
with estimated number of units per lot, consider zoning, soil type.  
Consider blighted areas, location to compact area and public/private 
water & sewer 

· Cost estimates for development: road, utilities, sitework, permitting 
· Funding sources: Federal/State, ME Housing, PIDF 
· Identify Partnerships 
· Tax Acquired Properties- continue to turn into residential units 

Report out initial findings in May 
Council Action 6/1 Market city owned lots for development, have discussions 

with developers.  DECD created list of various locations within City for developers to 
consider.  Staff held meetings with various developers, State entities, legislative 
outreach to promote housing opportunities.   

 
2. Recreation Programming:  Team Members: Gene Cronin & Rec Advisory 

Committee 



Goal: Create outdoor activities/programs for wide age groups & families 
Action Items: 

· Identify Programs and equipment needs 
· Develop budget 
· Explore NHC opportunities 
· Funding Sources- grants, annual budget, capital    

Equipment for Outdoor Programming   
Presentation in May 
Signed agreement with NHC, offered addition programs for summer 
Produced update of activities in June 

 
3. Online presence: Team Members:  Brad Turner, Kellie Chapman, Galen 

Weibley, Patty Jandreau  
Goal: Create Website that is consumer centric that highlights services & activities 
Action Items: 

· Create RFP for website design 
· Review RFPs, interview companies 
· Select company, contract 
· Establish timeline for bids, design meetings, progress updates and 

completion 
· Funding Sources- grants, annual budget, capital    

Was on agenda for March, RFP for April council meeting 
June council supported committee’s recommendation, Revize awarded contract. 
Website design committee met in July to discuss design. 
Design presented to council  

 
4. Workforce:   Team Members:  Brad Turner, Kellie Chapman, Martin Puckett & 

department heads 
Goal: Retention and attraction program for employees.    
Action Items: 

· Partnerships to develop training programs to obtain licenses: (NMCC 
& Grants) CDL, paramedics 

· Use information gathered from exit interviews to focus on key 
elements 

· Look at regional, state and national efforts to attract 
· Compare benefits 
· Meet with union to brainstorm  

 Report out in September 
Meetings occurred May 11 &19.  Memo created to overview union/non-union 

issues. 
Meet with council team to review issues, implemented increases in 2022/2023 

budget 
 

5. Marketing & Promotion:  Team Members:  Kim Smith, Martin Puckett  
Goal: Promote Regional Events to attract visitors, citizens,  increase workforce   



Action Items: 
· Create a cohesive website 
· Event Calendar   
· Integrate into website redesign 
· Explore CVB   
Incorporate into website  
 

6. Downtown Planning/Façade Program:  Team Members: Galen Weibley, TIF 
Advisory, Dana Fowler, PIDRC 
Goal: Downtown redevelopment & beautification   

· Main St MDOT future collaboration  VPI program 
· Design loan/funding program to spur private investment  
· Identify funding sources for façade- PIDF funding through TIF 
· Parking, traffic design & reduce large truck traffic 
· Sidewalk Repair, pedestrian improvements 
· Signage   

Council enacted Façade program & promoted door to door, accepting 
applications 
Applications received vetted by PIDF, approved by Council Mike and Sons, 
Northeastland.  
Warm program created, Thor Enterprizes 

 
7. Regional Services:  Darrell White, Lewis Cousins, Brad Turner 

Goal: Design sustainable, collaborative regional programs with other 
communities & entities 

· EMS & Assessing rate formulas for 2023 
· Explore other programs/partners   

EMS planned for May, Assessing soon after.   
Council created EMS rates in May, Assessing in June. 
Meeting with managers in June to discuss EMS rates 
 
Other topics: 
Fleet Management program implementation: Ongoing 
Internet expansion in the city, utilize anticipated funding 
Completion of City Hall with façade improvements for front & interior design 

 

 



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
For: 

February 1, 2023 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 16 
 

SUBJECT 
 

NEW BUSINESS: Approve Budget Actuals 2022 
 

INFORMATION 
 

1) Memo from Brad Turner, dated January 25,2023 
 

REQUESTED ACTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by Councilor _______________, seconded by 
Councilor _______________ that the City authorize the 
following departmental over-spending for 2022. 
 
 
Assessing - $15,779 
General Government - $279 
Police - $49,969 
Public Safety Bldg. - $15,364 
Utilities - $6,747 
Information Technology - $2,013 
City Clerk - $497 
 



City of Presque Isle, Maine 
 

12 Second Street                Presque Isle, ME 04769-2459               207.760.2717                    Fax 207.764.2501           
 

Finance Department 
From the desk of: 
Bradley Turner 

Email:  bturner@presqueisleme.us 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Bradley Turner, Finance Director 

DATE: January 25, 2023 

RE:  Request for Approval of 2022 Over-Spent Budgets 

 
At the close of the 2022 Budget Year the City will be able to transfer roughly 1.6 million dollars back 
into the General Fund due to the surplus/underspent budgets and increase in revenues.   
 
In 2022 the revenue for the City was $848,373 above the budgeted amount.  The Department of 
Economic Development had a revenue of $125,000 which was about $55,000 more than anticipated. 
The City Clerk department had an increase of $8,800.00 due to an increase in licenses issued.  
Another department that experienced an increase in revenue was the Solid Waste department which 
showed an increase in Tip Fee Revenue by $70,000.  The main reason why the revenue was so 
much more than budgeted was due to the State Revenue Sharing Program.  We had anticipated 1.9 
million dollars coming from this program and we ended up receiving nearly $900k more.  When 
passing the 2023 budget the Council voted to use just over 1 million dollars of this money to go 
towards the budget and decrease the burden on the taxpayers.   
 
After the close of the 2022 budget year the expenses were $423k under the amount budgeted.  The 
main reason for this was staffing issues.  We had several departments that weren’t fully staffed but 
budgeted as such.  During the 2022 budget year the Council voted on an increase in wages for the 
Police and Public Works departments.  In doing this we have tried to become more competitive with 
the County Sheriff Depts wages.  The increase in the Public Works Dept has helped in maintaining a 
full staff during this Winter season. 

 

At year-end if any of the departmental budgets as approved by City Council are overspent, the City 
Council must act on these amounts.  Based upon preliminary numbers for the year 2022, seven 
departments have over-spent their budgets:   

 Assessing -- $15,779; An increase in wages due additional work from regional assessing. 

 General Government -- $279; This is due to a slight increase in wages due to new hire. 

 Police Dept -- $49,969; Due to wage increases during the year.  

 Public Safety Bldg -- $15,364; Due to wage increases during the year.  

 Utilities -- $6,747; Increases in street lights/utilities, etc. 

 City Clerk -- $497; This increase was due to an increase in wages during the election season. 

 Information Technology -- $2,013; This was due to an increase in our Annual Maintenance 
Agreement with our Trio Software System. 

 

 

 



Based upon preliminary results of operations (Attachment A): 

 Expenses were $423,112 below budget, 
 Revenues were $848,373 above budget, for a net of 
 $1,271,485 below budget for the City Budget. 

 
Property Tax Revenue was $244,200 above budget due to an adjustment to Deferred Revenue, 
Overlay was $117,605 below budget resulting in an overall net of $1,633,291 that can be 
transferred into Surplus.  Preliminary 2022 Surplus Analysis is Attachment B. 
 

 
These numbers are preliminary and unaudited; there may be additional adjustments but they should 
be minor. 
 
Based upon the City’s overall performance in 2022, it is my recommendation that the City Council 
approve those amounts that were over-spent by the individual departments. 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY COUNCILOR ________________ and seconded by Councilor 
___________ that the City authorize the following departmental over-spending for 2022.   

 
 Assessing - $15,779 

 General Government - $279 

 Police - $49,969 

 Public Safety Bldg - $15,364 

 Utilities - $6,747 

 Information Technology - $2,013 

 City Clerk - $497 

 



CITY OF PRESQUE ISLE
GENERAL FUND BUDGET SUMMARY FOR 2022

Over/Under
Budget Actual Budget

001 ASSESSING 199,026$                 214,805$            15,779             

002 PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 211,971                  181,698              (30,273)            

003 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 357,942                  326,417              (31,525)            

004 FIRE DEPARTMENT 1,555,631                1,522,560           (33,071)            

006 GENERAL GOVERNMENT 350,296                  350,575              279                  

007 LIBRARY 423,102                  409,669              (13,433)            

008 POLICE DEPARTMENT 1,451,275                1,501,244           49,969             

009 PUBLIC WORKS 2,193,452                2,152,008           (41,444)            

010 RECREATION & PARKS 1,168,484                1,032,765           (135,719)          

011 RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 85,630                    81,711                (3,919)              

012 SOLID WASTE 484,597                  476,469              (8,128)              

013 INDUSTRIAL COUNCIL 417,832                  407,507              (10,325)            

014 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,294,482                2,170,718           (123,764)          

015 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 366,956                  382,320              15,364             

016 INSURANCES 171,432                  163,984              (7,448)              

017 UTILITIES 646,482                  653,229              6,747               

018 DEBT SERVICE 876,061                  873,355              (2,706)              

019 ECHO LAKE 1,503                      1,229                  (274)                 

020 UNCLASSIFIEDS 259,935                  206,786              (53,149)            

021 OUTSIDE REQUESTS 56,450                    56,450                -                   

023 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 67,338                    69,351                2,013               

025 CITY CLERK 60,269                    60,766                497                  

026 GENERAL ASSISTANCE 22,150                    3,568                  (18,582)            
CAPITAL RESERVE APPROPRIATIONS 1,238,970                1,238,970           -                   

TOTAL EXPENSES 14,961,266$            14,538,154$       (423,112)$        

001 ASSESSING 101,405.00              91,416                (9,989)              

002 PLANNING AND DEVELOPMEMT 70,000                    124,937              54,937             

003 FINANCE 1,967,000                1,817,920           (149,080)          

004 FIRE DEPARTMENT 1,149,982                1,048,875           (101,107)          

006 GENERAL GOVERNMENT -                          -                     -                   

007 LIBRARY 16,000                    17,778                1,778               

008 POLICE DEPARTMENT 111,565                  91,629                (19,936)            

009 PUBLIC WORKS 28,376                    46,355                17,979             

010 RECREATION & PARKS 330,300                  336,113              5,813               

012 SOLID WASTE 588,570                  659,298              70,728             

013 INDUSTRIAL COUNCIL 815,798                  805,483              (10,315)            

014 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 5,000                      14,437                9,437               

016 INSURANCES 1,000                      1,063                  63                    

018 DEBT SERVICE TRANSFER 83,042                    83,042                -                   

019 ECHO LAKE 8,207                      1,229                  (6,978)              

022 AIRPORT 38,202                    38,202                -                   

025 CITY CLERK 58,600                    67,420                8,820               

026 GENERAL ASSISTANCE 15,505                    7,691                  (7,814)              

027 GENERAL FUND REVENUE 2,285,714                3,269,750           984,036           

075 CAPITAL RESERVE TRANSFER -                          -                     -                   
LESS:  TOTAL REVENUE 7,674,265$              8,522,638$         848,373$         

NET CITY SPENDING  BUDGET 7,287,001$              6,015,516$         (1,271,485)$     

TIF 188,969                  188,969              (0)                     
EDUCATION ASSESSMENT 6,297,697                6,297,697           (0)                     
COUNTY TAXES 885,482                  885,482              (0)                     

TOTAL 2022 MUNICIPAL  APPROPRIATION 14,659,150$            13,387,664$       (1,271,486)$     

TAX REVENUE 13,438,615              13,682,815         244,200           
HOMESTEAD REIMBURSEMENT 808,508                  808,508              -                   
BETE REIMBURSEMENT 603,689                  603,689              0                      
OVERLAY (191,650)                 (74,045)               117,605           

14,659,162$            15,020,967$       361,805$         

AMOUNT TO BE RETURNED TO SURPLUS (1,633,303)$        (1,633,291)$     

BGT 1/25/2023



PRESQUE ISLE CITY COUNCIL 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Wednesday, February 1, 2023 
 

 
· There is a Maine-Quebec Winter Carnival Caravan leaving 

on February 10th and returning on the 12th.  Contact the 
Central Aroostook Chamber for more information. 
 

· We have the following vacancies for Boards/Committees; 
Zoning Board and Planning Board.  Please see the City Clerk 
for an application or apply online. 

 
· The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Presque Isle 

City Council will be on Wednesday, March 1, 2023, at 6:00 
pm at the Sargent Family Community Center. 
 
 


	Cover Memo 2.1.23
	February 1, 2023 Agenda
	2023 Proclamation Maine
	Agenda Item 1
	PI Country Club App
	Presque Isle, PI Country Club, SH, Jan. 25
	Agenda Item 2
	Mainely Mexican app
	Presque Isle, Mainely Mexican, SH, Jan. 25
	Agenda Item 3
	motion-memo
	Chapter 9 License Public Hrg Fee 2-01-23
	CHAPTER 9
	CHAPTER 9
	Section 1 Purpose
	Section 2 Fees
	Section 3 Sunset Provision



	Presque Isle, Ch. 9, SH, Jan. 25
	Agenda Item 4
	motion-memo
	GA Ordinance Adoption Form
	Presque Isle, Ch. 48, SH, Jan. 25
	Agenda Item 5
	01-04-2023
	Agenda Item 6
	For:
	AGENDA ITEM #6
	INFORMATION
	REQUESTED ACTION

	Agenda Item 7
	Memo for Deed Restriction - ACAP & FW Webb
	MLI-Survey (04186097xAE394) - ACAP
	MQD - Release of Restriction - ACAP
	Municipal Quitclaim Deed Ram Construction
	Agenda Item 8
	Dangerous Building Memo
	State Statutes
	Motion.Schedule Order to Abate - Ellis.Saucier.Graham - 2-1-23
	1 Mechanic St
	23 St John St
	257 Houlton Rd
	CONDEMNED PROPERTIES - NARRATIVE. 2-1-23
	Agenda Item 9
	State Fire Convention 2023
	Agenda Item 10
	NBRC Letter of Support Memo 1.25.23
	PQI Terminal Report - 23-1-25 FINAL
	Presque Isle, SH, Jan. 18
	Agenda Item 11
	For:
	AGENDA ITEM # 11
	INFORMATION
	REQUESTED ACTION

	MEMO Schedule Hearing Chapter 16 Land Use Code.2-1-23
	Agenda Item 12
	For:
	AGENDA ITEM # 12
	INFORMATION
	REQUESTED ACTION

	MEMO Schedule Hearing PIDF By-Laws
	Agenda Item 13
	Transfer of Funds Resolve 2022
	Agenda Item 14
	For:
	AGENDA ITEM # 14
	INFORMATION
	REQUESTED ACTION

	Goals Memo
	Police Dept.
	Presque Isle Fire Department 2022 Review
	Agenda Item 15
	For:
	AGENDA ITEM # 15
	INFORMATION
	REQUESTED ACTION

	2022 Goals w Actions
	Agenda Item 16
	Overspent Budgets Council 2022
	REsolution overspent budgets 2022
	2022 Budget Actual Summary

	Annoucements



